STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE é

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES
BUREAU OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner 105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-5034 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5034

Kathleen A. Dunn FAX: 603-271-5166 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Associate Commissioner

June 3, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Developmental Services to
exercise a renewal option to an existing Agreement with Southeastern Regional Education Services
Center, Inc., 29 Commerce Drive, Bedford, New Hampshire 03110, Vendor Code 154866-B001, to
provide feeding and swallowing services to children with special health care needs (CSHCN), by
increasing the price limitation by $357,504 from $358,228 to an amount not to exceed $715,732, and
extending the completion date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2017, effective July 1, 2015 or on the
date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later. The Agreement was approved by Governor
and Executive Council on June 19, 2013 (Item #120). 30% Federal Funds, 70% General Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in State
Fiscal Years 2016 and 2017, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified, without
approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-93-930010-5191 DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL
SERVICES-DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVSC, SPECIAL MEDICAL SERVICES

Current increase/
State Fiscal Budget Decrease | Revised Budget
Year Class/Obiject Class Title | Amount Amount Amount
CSHCN |
2014 562-500912 Assistance $179,114 $0 $179,114
CSHCN
2015 562-500912 Assistance $179,114 $0 $179,114
CSHCN
2016 562-500912 Assistance 30 $178,752 $178,752
CSHCN
2017 562-500912 Assistance $0 $178,752 $178,752
Total $358,228 | $357,504 $715,732




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

May 21, 2015

Page 2

EXPLANATION

Approval of this Amendment will allow the Department to continue to provide an individual who
shall perform the services of a Feeding and Swallowing Program Manager to recruit, train and
supervise a group of community-based therapists (speech, occupational, physical). These providers
shall offer services in the areas of assessment and intervention of feeding and swallowing issues of
children with special health care needs, enhancing the assessment skills of community-based
therapists to deliver care and provide a mechanism to build service capacity. Additionally, training and
consultation shall be provided to hospital radiology departments in the provision of swallow studies in
pediatric patients, as well as to the Special Medical Services Section’s nurse coordinators, and to
nutritionists, school personnel and early intervention providers on the use of a screening tool to identify
feeding issues.

This initiative assures that children with special health care needs will have access to needed
services within the State, and lessens the requirement that families travel to out-of-state specialty care
hospitals for comparable care. it is estimated that a total of 450 to 500 children will be served during
SFY 2015 through SFY 2016.

This Contractor was selected through a competitive bid process.

The original Agreement and Governor and Council letter contains an option to renew the
contract for two additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance
of services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council. The Department and the Contractor
have agreed to extend the contract for two additional years.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this Request, approximately
450 - 500 children and youth with special health care needs will not have access to expert
assessments and individualized plans for intervention of feeding and swallowing issues.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 30% Federal Title V Block Grant Funds and 70% General funds from the
United States Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration, Title V
Block Grant Funds, CFDA #93.994 and FAIN #B04MC23394

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,
Lorene Regan
Director

Approved by: D fml§ : ( i
Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is te join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Services for Children with Special Health Care Needs

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Feeding and Swallowing Services for
Children with Special Health Care Needs

This first Amendment to the Feeding and Swallowing Services for Children with Special Health
Care Needs contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment #1°) dated May 18, 2015, is between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Heaith and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
“State” or “Department”) and Southeastern Regional Education Service Center (hereinafter referred to as
"the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation, located at 29 Commerce Drive, Bedford, NH, 03110.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June
19, 2013 (ltem #120) (hereinafter referred to as the “Contract’), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed {0 make changes to the scope of work,
payment scheduies and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement (section 18 of the General Provisions of the Form P-37),
and the provisions of Exhibit C-1 paragraph 6, the State may renew the contract by the way of a 2-year
extension, subject to availability of funding and priorities, satisfactory performance of the Scope of
Services, the Agreement may be modified or amended only by written instrument executed by the parties
thereto and approved by the Governor and Executive Council, and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and extend the completion date of
the Contract by two (2) years; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions in this Amendment #1,
the obligations of the parties shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth in the Contract as referenced above.

2. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.7, Completion Date, by extending the date to
June 30, 2017.

3.  Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: $715,732.

4. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency to read:
Eric Borrin, Director of Contracts and Procurement.

5. Amend General Provisions (Form P-37), Block 1.10, to read: (603) 271-9558.
6. Amend Standard Exhibit A, Scope of Services, DATE, by extending the date to June 30, 2017.

7. Amend Standard Exhibit A, Scope of Services, CONTRACT PERIOD, by extending the date to
June 30, 2017.

8. Delete in its entirety Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment and replace with
Exhibit B Amendment #1.

9. Add Exhibit B-1 Budget, and Exhibit B-2.

Southeastern Regional Education Service Center Contractor Initiais: Z@

Amendment #1
Page 1 of 3 Date: S 134’!5



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Services for Children with Special Health Care Needs

10. Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit C, Special Provisions, and replace with Exhibit C, Special
Provisions.

11. Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit C-1 Additional Special Provisions, paragraph 3.
12. Add Exhibit C-2.

13. Amend Standard Exhibit D, Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements, Period
Covered by this Certification, by extending the end date to June 30, 2017.

14. Amend Standard Exhibit E, Certification Regarding Lobbying, Contract Period, by extending the
end date to June 30, 2017.

15. Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit G, Certification Regarding the Americans with Disabilities
Act Compliance, and replace with Exhibit G, Certification of Compliance with Requirements
Pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations and
Whistleblower Protections.

16. Delete in its entirety Standard Exhibit |, Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
Business Associate Agreement, and replace with Exhibit | Amendment #1, Health Insurance
Portability Act Business Associate Agreement.

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date © [3/6 Rém, MPH i #‘/

Associate Commissioner

Southeastern Regignal Educatjon Service Center

T1oq|ss
Date ' NAME R chorA LaSalie
TTLE  Eroconie OfrecTor

Acknowledgement:
State of&y_@g‘(ﬂc County ofH'ﬂJ bovegly on ﬂ%h Y before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or sat|sfactor|ly proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

0{% wl-

d_Title of Netarrerdustice dftre-PEACEN

(,Ucc\locce Jusvite of The (e e
\mgj Commi STon £xplres Cﬂ‘?,l‘i

Southeastern Regional Education Service Center Contractor Initials: (ﬁ
Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and 8wallowinﬁ_g Services for Children with Special Health Care Needs

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

[}
Name: R
Title: %
| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Sovernor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Southeastern Regional Education Service Center Contractor Initials: /Z@

Amendment #1
Page 3 of 3 Date: E i 97[; f



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B Amendment #1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8, of the
Genera!l Provisions (Form P-37) of this Agreement in consideration for the Contractor’'s compliance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Contract is funded with federal funds made available under the Catalog of Federal domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #'s, for the provision of services pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services as
follows:

2.1. 93.994 United States Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and
Services Administration, Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant

2.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services in compliance with
funding requirements.

3. Payment for contracted services will be made on a cost reimbursement basis only, for allowable
expenses, in accordance with the Exhibit B-1 Budget and Exhibit B-2 Budget.

4. Reimbursements for services provided shall be made by the State on a monthly basis after receipt,
review and approval of monthly expenditure reports submitted by the Contractor to the State.

5. Monthly Expenditure Reports, which are based on a budget approved by the State (defined in
Paragraph 3, above), shall be in a form approved by the State and shall be submitted no later than
twenty (20) working days after the close of the month. In addition to the monthly expenditure reports
required and not later than sixty (60) days after the end of the budget period, the Contractor shall
submit a final expenditure report in a form satisfactory to the State.

6. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all payments made by the State for direct and indirect costs
and expenses including, but not limited to, personnel costs and operating expenses related to the
Services. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in accordance with
applicable State and Federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees not to use or apply such
payments for capital additions or improvements, dues to societies and organizations, entertainment
costs or any other costs not approved by the State. The Contractor must also have written
authorization from the State prior to purchasing any equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred
dollars ($500) and/or with a useful life beyond one (1) year.

7. The Contractor agrees to use the following acknowledgement and disclaimer on all products
produced by contract funds, whose source is the Health Resources and Services Administration
(HRSA):

“This project is/was supported by the Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA) of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
(HHS) under grant number and title for grant amount (specify grant number,
title, total award amount and percentage financed with nongovernmental
sources). This information or content and conclusions are those of the author
and should not be construed as the official position or policy of, nor should any
endorsements be inferred by HRSA, HHS or the U.S. Government.”

Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initials _/ 2 '4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B Amendment #1

7.1. The Contractor agrees to use this language when issuing statements, press releases, requests
for proposals, bid solicitations, and other HRSA supported publications and forums describing
projects or programs funded in whole or in part with HRSA funding, inciuding websites.
Examples of HRSA-supported publications include, but are not limited to, manuals, toolkits,
resource guides, case studies and issues briefs.

8. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the NH General Court may
impact on the services described herein, the State retains the right to modify expenditure
requirements under this agreement.

9. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions of this Agreement P-37, an amendment,
limited to the budgets, Exhibit B-1 and Exhibit B-2, to adjust amounts within the budgets and between
State Fiscal Years, within the price limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parties and
may be made without obtaining approval of Governor and Executive Council.

10. The Contractor will submit, for Department approval, a written request, with programmatic
justification, to adjust amounts within the budgets or between State Fiscal Years.

11. In the event of a vacancy in any of the key personnel positions, the Department’s Special Medical
Services Section is authorized to direct any and all budget revisions deemed necessary and
appropriate by the Administrator to assure continuity of services as outlined in Exhibit A, including the
cost of advertisement.

12. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any Federal or
State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services or products
have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

Page 2 of 2 Date 5 ’E”(



Exhibit B-1 Budget

BUDGET FORM
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD
Bidder Name: Southeastern Regional Educational Service Center
Feeding and Swallowing Services for Children with Special
Budget Request for: Health Care Needs
Name of Program
Budget Period: 7/1/15-6/30/16
1. _Total Salary/Wages $ $ $ 60,588
2. Employee Benefits $ 18,1761 $ 18181 8§ 19,994
3. Consultants $ -18% -3 -
4. Equipment; $ -18 -13 -
Rental $ -18 -1 8 -
Repair and Maintenance $ -13 -13$ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ -18 -9 -
5. Supplies: $ -13 -18 -
Educational $ -18 -18% -
Lab $ -18 -13 -
Pharmacy $ -18 -19% -
Medical $ -1 -1% -
Office $ 600} $ 60189 660
6. Travel $ 18980 | § 18918 2,079
7. Occupancy $ -18% -18 -
8. Current Expenses $ -13 -19% -
Telephone $ -193 -13 -
Postage $ -18 -18 -
Subscriptions $ -18 -18 -
Audit and Legal $ -1 -19% -
Insurance 3 -19$ -18 -
Board Expenses $ -18 -13 -
9. Software $ 1001 % 1018 110
10. Marketing/Communications $ -3 -13% -
11. Staff Education and Training 3 3,000) % 3001 8% 3,300
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ -1$ -18 -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ -19% -19% -
Cultural/Linguistic Support $ 2000] 8 2001 $ 2,200
Regional F&S Patient Services 3 816551 % 81661 % 89,821
$ -13 1s X
$ -{$ 13 X
$ -19 -13 -
$ -18 -15 -
TOTAL $ 162,501 | $ 16,251 | $ 178,752 [
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.0%
Exhibit B-1 Budget Contractor Initials:

Page 10of 1 Date:



Exhibit B-2 Budget

BUDGET FORM

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder Name: Southeastern Regional Educational Service Center

Feeding and Swallowing Services for Children with Special

Budget Request for: Health Care Needs

Name of Program

Budget Period: 7/1/16-6/30/17

Total Salary/Wages

60,588

Employee Benefits

19,994

Consultants

Ao

Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation

Supplies:

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

o

Travel

~

QOccupancy

Current Expenses

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

9

Software

10. Marketing/Communications

11. Staff Education and Training

12. Subcontracts/Agreements

13. Other (specific details mandatory):

Cultural/Linguistic Support

2,000

Regional F&S Patient Services

81,655

U P G G A G A A A A A G A A L A LA R A R O ) Do N R YRR R R R g Rocd s B Rocd R g Rl hodd
f

'
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TOTAL 162,501

'
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1

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

Exhibit B-2 Budget
Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Confractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuais declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shal! be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalif of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2, Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annuai audit to the Department within 60 days after the ciose of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to ail reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials [é g
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: in the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at aill times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. Iin connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshai and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C ~ Special Provisions Contractor Initials A e
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Empioyee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shali retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’s performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve ali subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials _/_Z;
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State relfated to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1  Comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or
property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per
occurrence with additional umbrella liability insurance coverage of not less than
$3,000,000.
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’'s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;,

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation,

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Piiot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistlebiower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit G
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In the event a Federa! or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal {(contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Lvallis //%M

Nanfe: /"
Title:

D
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Exhibit | - Amendment #1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

&) Definitions.
a. ‘Breach’ shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitieXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(qg).

J.  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. /
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(2)

“Required by L.aw” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
l. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
I For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shali not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’'s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving lez
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Assaociate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business ai
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disciosure of PHi that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHL.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

C. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Deguimadylaihbimin oo STl Lusrocn Rolored Edvesion Conror

Name ofithe Con

A s %@. // M
Signature of Authorized RepréSentative  Sighature’of AdthdriZed Representative

hokene Reasan Eicvorr (0Sal (e

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
E o T @ vec Ter™
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
e/3/15 Cl2al/s
Date Date °’
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State of Neto Hampshire
Hepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New bHampshire, do hereby

certify that SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICE CENTER is a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed August 6, 1974. I further certify that it is
in good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the

fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 11th day of March A.D. 2015

Fy Sl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State



29 Commerce Drive
Bedford, NH 03110

Sougheastern ' Phone: (603) 206-6800
Reglon?l Fax: (603) 206-6599
Edugatlon www.seresc.net
Service Center, Inc.

RICHARD LASALLE
Inspiring innovation and excellence in education and professional practice. Executive Director

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

The Board of Directors of the Southeastern Regional Education Service Center, Inc. do hereby certify
that Richard LaSalle is the duly appointed Executive Director of the Southeastern Regional Education
Service Center, Inc. (SERESC), a New Hampshire Corporation duly existing under the law and having a
principal place of business in Bedford, New Hampshire.

The Board also certifies that Richard LaSalle is authorized by the Board of Directors of the Southeastern
Regional Education Service Center, Inc. to sign on behalf of the corporation; all contracts, agreements,
documents, application for payment from the NH Governor and Council, state bodies and all other
individuals and entities.

The Board further certifies that Richard LaSalle is authorized to execute on behalf of the Corporation, all

contracts, agreements and other similar documents. C‘) Q
September 26, 2014 : J J

Date Dr. Charles P. Littlefield, Chairperson
SERESC Board of Directors

The foregoing resolution has not been amended or

GU/NL "{{QO,S

Acknowledgement: State of NH, County of Hillsborough

On [ﬂ./Lf /-9-0/ 3’ , before the undersigned officer, Dr. Charles P. Littlefield, Chairperson,
satisfactorily identified himself and acknowledged that he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.

/(A Jebfie Ukllnce Jusriceq T focce

A ure/of Notary Public Name, Title and Expiration of Commission’

q[i7|2019

MEMBER SCHOOL DISTRICTS
Auburn « Bedford « Candia « Hampstead « Hooksett « Hudson « Litchfield
Londonderry * Merrimack * Pelham * Timberlane * Windham



SOUTHEA OP ID: BB
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

.
ACORLD  CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE wsl08/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

TRODUCER. o (Morimack Phone: 603-424-9901| SSNEACT
ro errimac | PHON
30rngv)nanie| W‘::ster nghwa))y Fax: 866-848-1223| {0, ex: 1 (W8, Noi:
Merrimack, NH 03054 ADMHESS:
Mark Cote *
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
insurer A : Citizens Ins Co Of America
INSURED Southeastern Regional Ed insurer 8 :Massachusetts Bay Insurance Co
gg?&ﬁnﬁg;::?brive iNsurer ¢ :*Hanover Insurance Company
Bedford, NH 03110 INSURER D :
INSURERE :
£
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

S
MR TYPE OF INSURANCE Nag v POLICYNUMBER (RUDONSYY) | RDANT T umTs
| GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY X ZBV962677700 07/01/2014 | 07/01/2015 | DREMSE TNl o s 100,00
| cramsmane [ X ] occur MED EXP (Any one person) | § 15,000
- PERSONAL 8 ADVINJURY | '§ 1,000,000
L GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 2,000,000
POLICY RO Loc s
MEINED
| auTomoBILE LABILITY ey e LM 1,000,0
A | |anvauto |ABV9626162 07/01/2014 | 07/01/2015 | BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
X | QbLng"NED ﬁﬁ;‘ggULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
| X | HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Por acadenty o $
$
| X | UMBRELLAUAB | X | occuRr EACH OCCURRENCE $ 3,000,000
c EXCESS LIAB CLamMsMaDE| X UHV9636434 07/01/2014 | 07/01/2015 | AGGREGATE s 3,000,000
DED T X ] RETENTION $ 0 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- l Fm.
B | ANY PROPAETORIARTEA LN 'WDV962085600 07/01/2014 | 07, o =
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A 4| 0710172018 | £ each AcCiDEnT $ 500,000
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE § 500,000
lees, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, it more space Is required)

Certificate holder is included as additional insured with regards to General
Liability per written contract [GL endorsement 421-0363 (02/11)].

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

NH Department of Health and ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Human Services, Thayer
Building AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

129 Pleasant St.
Concord, NH 03301 /4 looit £ %};bq—

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2010/05) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




SERESC Mission, Vision and Core Values

Mission:

Inspiring innovation and excellence in education and professional practice.

Vision:

Helping organizations and individuals achieve their greatest potential as they
learn, lead and grow.

Core Values:

Innovation — Ahead of the curve, responsive to the market place, response to
change, creating new knowledge

Integrity — Respect, honesty, honoring diversity, ethical practice, what you say is
what you do (transparency, reliability, accountability)

Excellence — Knowledge and practice that surpass ordinary standards, exceeding
expectations, collaboration

Service — A common commitment to respond with care, compassion and
determination to the needs of our colleagues, community and “greater good”
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MELANSON|gI¥NRE

ACCOUNTANTS » AUDITORS

102 Perimeter Road

Nashua, NH 03063
(603)882-1111
melansonheath.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Additional Offices:

To the Board of Directors of él.‘:;:fe.; g‘l:w )
Southeastern Regional Education Service Center, Inc. M o NI
Elisworth, ME

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Southeastern Regional
Education Service Center, Inc., which comprise the statement of financial position as
of June 30, 2014, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these finan-
cial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and mainte-
nance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess-
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies



used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates_ made by manage-
ment, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Southeastern Regional Education Service Center,
Inc. as of June 30, 2014, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization’s fiscal year 2013 financial statements,
and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements
in our report dated April 28, 2014. In our opinion, the summarized comparative infor-
mation presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013 is consistent,
in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other Matters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial state-
ments as a whole. The Schedule of Functional Expenses is presented for purposes
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated January 26, 2015 on our consideration of the Organization’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of



that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opin-
ion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Malamson Heath

January 26, 2015



SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE CENTER, INC.

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2014

(with comparative totals as of June 30, 2013)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted short-term investments
Short-term investments
Accounts and grants receivable
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Property and equipment, net
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other liabilities
Deferred revenue
Line of credit
Current portion of long term debt
Total Current Liabilities

Long term debt net of current portion

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Temporarily 2014 2013

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
$ 271,522 $ 68,182 $ 339,704 $ 355,069
159,588 - 159,588 157,709
- - - 326,758
758,241 - 758,241 969,056
12,627 - 12,627 18,724
1,201,978 68,182 1,270,160 1,827,316
6,419,872 - 6,419,872 6,625.624
$ 7,621,850 $ 68,182 $ 7,690,032 $ 8,452 940
$ 229,331 $ - $ 229,331 $ 109,931
63,492 - 63,492 82,236
17,509 - 17,509 16,245
2,594 - 2,594 2,594
50,000 - 50,000 200,000
210,000 - 210,000 200,000
572,926 . - 572,926 611,006
4,215,000 - 4,215,000 4,425.000
4,787,926 - 4,787,926 5,036,006
2,833,924 - 2,833,924 3,310,738
- 68,182 68,182 106,196
2,833,924 68,182 2,902,106 3,416,934
$ 7,621,850 $ 68,182 $ 7.690,032 $ 8452940

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE CENTER, INC.
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2013)

Temporarily 2014 2013
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Support and Revenue:
Support:
Government grants $ 1,264,326 $ - $ 1,264,326 $ 1,551,790
Grants and contributions - 84,060 84,060 73,665
Revenue:
Tuition revenue 583,204 - 583,204 572,252
Consulting revenue 2,914,689 - 2,914,689 3,110,946
Membership revenue 69,023 - 69,023 87,194
Other services 1,863,586 - 1,863,586 1,663,132
Investment income:
Interest income 253 10 263 1,844
Net assets released from restriction 122,084 {122,084) - -
Total Support and Revenue 6,817,165 (38,014) 6,779,151 7,060,823
Expenses:
Program services 6,554,877 - 6,554,877 6,585,280
Administration and fundraising 739,102 - 739,102 1,061,821
Total Expenses 7,293,979 - 7,293,979 7.647,101
Change in net assets (476,814) (38,014) (514,828) (586,278)
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 3,310,738 106,196 3,416,934 4,003,212
Net Assets, End of Year $_2,833.924 $___68,182 $ 2902106 $ 3,416,934

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE CENTER, INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2013)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in:
Restricted cash and short term investments
Accounts and grants receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other liabilities

Net Cash from Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments
Purchase of fixed assets

Net Cash from investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Line of credit proceeds
Line of credit payments
Principal payments of long term debt

Net Cash from Financing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:

Interest Paid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2014 2013
$ (514,828) $ (586,278)
250,446 246214
(1,879) (21,236)
210,815 (35,242)
6,097 2,234
119,400 (16,307)
(18,744) (69,659)
1,264 4,343
52,571 (475,931)
326,758 -
- (1,415)
(44,694) (70,578)
282,064 (71,993)
- 200,000
(150,000) -
_(200,000) (190,000)
(350,000) 10,000
(15,365) (537,924)
355,069 892,993
$_ 339,704 $ 355,069
$_ 171,756 $_ 243521




SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE CENTER, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Organization

Southeastern Regional Education Service Center, Inc. (the Organization), is a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that is funded through Federal revenues
and tuition from local school districts. The Organization provides education
services to local school districts and educators throughout New Hampshire.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the Organization
used in preparing and presenting the accompanying financial statements.

Accounting for Contributions and Financial Statement Presentation

The Organization follows Accounting for Contributions Received and Con-
tributions Made and Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations as
required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Stand-
ards Codification (FASB ASC). Under these guidelines, the Organization is
required to distinguish between contributions that increase permanently
restricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and unrestricted net
assets. It also requires recognition of contributions, including contributed
services, meeting certain criteria at fair values. These reporting standards
establish standards for financial statements of not-for-profit organizations and
require a Statement of Financial Position, a Statement of Activities and a
Statement of Cash Flows.

Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Under this basis, revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are
reported when incurred, without regard to the date of receipt or payment of
cash. Contributions are reported in accordance with FASB ASC Accounting
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.

Restricted and Unrestricted Revenue

Contributions received are recorded as increases in unrestricted, temporarily
restricted, or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the existence
and/or nature of any donor restrictions.



Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers all
highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Investments

The Organization’s investments are comprised of certificates of deposit with
maturities of greater than three months. Restricted short-term investments are
comprised of money market mutual funds.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts for receivables is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Organization’s management and adjusted
as required through the provision for doubtful accounts (bad debt expense). In
determining the amount required in the allowance account for the year ended
June 30, 2014, management has taken into account a variety of factors.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation. Major additions and improvements are
capitalized, while ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to expense.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets. Assets not in service are not depreciated.

Functional Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and activities have been summarized
on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities and in the Schedule of
Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among
the programs and supporting services benefited.

Donated Services

The Organization receives donated services from a variety of unpaid volun-
teers assisting the Organization in its programs. No amounts have been
recognized in the accompanying Statement of Activities because the criteria
for recognition of such volunteer effort under generally accepted accounting
principles have not been satisfied.

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets
or that require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those
skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation,
are recorded at their fair values in the period received.



Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Accordingly, actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Tax Status

Southeast Regional Education Service Center, Inc. is exempt from federal
income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organi-
zation described in Section 501(c)(3). The Organization has also been
classified as an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of
Section 509(a) and qualifies for deductible contributions.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute
for financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken
or expected to be taken in a tax return. FASB ASC 740-10 did not have a
material impact on the Organization’s financial statements.

The Organization’s Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt From
Income Tax) is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years
after filing.

The Organization recognizes interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in
interest expense and penalties that are included within reported expenses.
During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Organization had no interest or
penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified
for comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current-year
financial statements.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Cash and Cash Equivalents

The carrying amount of the Organization's deposits with financial institutions
was $339,704 at June 30, 2014. The difference between the carrying amount
and the bank balance represents reconciling items such as deposits in transit
and outstanding checks, which have not been processed by the bank at
June 30, 2014. The bank balance is categorized as follows:



Insured by FDIC $ 413,319
Uninsured and uncollateralized 835

Total Bank Balance $ 414,154

4. Property, Equipment and Depreciation

A summary of the major components of property and equipment is presented

below:
2014 2013
Land and land improvements $ 1,058,330 $ 1,058,330
Buildings and improvements 7,341,414 7,335,614
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,352,487 1,313,593
Vehicles 13,960 13,960
Subtotal 9,766,191 9,721,497
Less: accumulated depreciation (3,346,319) (3,095,873)
Total $ 6,419,872 $ 6,625624

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 totaled $250,446.

5. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist primarily of payroll related liabilities.

6. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2014 consisted of the following:

Bond payable due in varying monthly installments and

interest at 2.8% due semiannually, paid by the

Organization on a monthly basis, payable over 30

years, and secured by a letter of credit. $ 4425000

————
Total 4,425,000
Less amount due within one year (210,000)
Long-term debt, net of current portion $ 4,215,000

10



8.

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
long-term debt.

Year Amount
2015 $ 210,000
2016 225,000
2017 235,000
2018 115,000
2019 120,000
Thereafter 3,520,000
$ 4,425,000

On December 29, 2011, the Organization and the purchaser of the bond
agreed to a new multi-annual rate agreement under which the bond will be
subject to mandatory remarketing on October 31, 2016. The bond is backed
in full by a letter of credit, expiring on November 14, 2016.

The Organization is subject to financial covenants that require the maintenance
of minimum and maximum liquidity ratio, debt service coverage ratio and debt
to tangible net worth ratio. These financial covenants are effective if the bonds
are no longer secured by a letter of credit. In fiscal year 2014, the bonds were
secured by a letter of credit, making the financial covenants inapplicable.

Line of Credit

Effective in July, 2014, the Organization has available a revolving line of credit
with a bank in the amount of $300,000. The outstanding balance on this line

at June 30, 2014 was $50,000. This line is payable on demand and requires
monthly interest only payments calculated on the outstanding balance from the
previous month. Interest is variable, based on Wall Street Prime adjusted daily.
Said rate is subject to a floor of 4.00%. The current rate at June 30, 2014 was
4.00%.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are évailable for the following purposes at
June 30, 2014:

New Hampshire Assistive Technology Loan Fund $ 19,656
Scholarship Fund 6,929
Preschool Technical Assistance Network - District Funds 39,857
Preschool Technical Assistance Network - Private Grants 640
New Hampshire Charitable Foundation 1,100

Temporarily restricted net assets $ 68,182

11



10.

11.

12.

Net Assets Released from Restriction

Net assets are released from program restrictions by incurring expenses
satisfying the restricted purpose.

Defined Contribution Benefit Plan

The Organization sponsors a defined contribution plan (the Plan) covering

all employees age 18 and over, with at least one consecutive year of service
who agree to make contributions to the Plan. The Organization has the option
of making a discretionary matching contribution. No matching contributions
were made by the Organization for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Operating Leases

The Organization leases office equipment under various lease agreements.
Equipment rental expense totaled $28,976 for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Fair Value Measurements

FASB ASC, Fair Value Measurements, provides guidance for using fair value
to measure assets and liabilities. Fair Value Measurements applies whenever
other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at their
fair market value. The standard does not expand the use of fair value in any
new circumstances. Under Fair Value Measurements, fair value refers to the
price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the meas-
urement date. Fair Value Measurements clarifies the principle that fair value
should be based on the assumptions market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability and establishes a fair value hierarchy that priorit-
izes the information used to develop those assumptions.

Under Fair Value Measurements, the Organization categorizes its fair value
estimates based on a hierarchical framework associated with three levels of
price transparency utilized in measuring financial instruments at fair value.
Classification is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value of the instrument. The three levels are as follows:

* Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at
the measurement date. The types of financial instruments included in
Level 1 are highly liquid instruments with quoted prices;

e Level 2 - Inputs from active markets, other than quoted prices for
identical instruments, are used to model fair value. Significant inputs

12



are directly observable from active markets for substantially the full
term of the asset or liability being valued; and

« Level 3 - Pricing inputs significant to the valuation are unobservable.
Inputs are developed based on the best information available; how-
ever, significant judgment is required by management in developing
the inputs.

The estimated fair value of the Organization’s financial instruments is
presented in the following table:

Carrying Value Fair Vaiue Level One Level Two Level Three

Restricted short-term

investments $ 159,588 $ 159,588 $ 159,588 $ - $ -
Total assets $ 159588 $ 159588 $ 159,588 $ - $ -
Line of credit $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ - $ -
Bond payable 4,425,000 4,425,000 - 4,425,000 -
Total liabilities $ 4,475,000 $ 4,475,000 $ 50,000 $ 4,425,000 $ -

13.

14.

15.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of those financial instruments.

Related Party Transactions

The Organization’s Board of Directors is comprised of superintendents and
school board representatives from member New Hampshire school districts.
The Organization provides a variety of services to these entities.

Concentrations of Risk

A material part of the Organization’s revenue is derived from services provided
to member districts and the New Hampshire Department of Education, the loss
of which would have a materially adverse effect on the Organization. During the
year ended June 30, 2014, 23% of the Organization’s program service revenue
was from the Merrimack School District (SAU #26), 11% was from the Bedford
School District (SAU #25), and 14% from the New Hampshire Department of
Education.

Subsequent Events

In accordance with the provisions set forth by FASB ASC, Subsequent
Events, events and transactions from July 1, 2014 through January 26, 2015,

13



the date the financial statements were available to be issued, have been
evaluated by management for disclosure.

On August 26, 2014 the Organization entered into an agreement with the
Nashua School District to lease a portion of the Organization’s building
located at 1 Brentwood Drive, Merrimack, New Hampshire to the District
through June 19, 2015 for $5,667 per month. There is an option to renew
the lease for two additional terms of one year each.

Other than the event noted above, management has determined that there

were no material events that would require disclosure in the Organization’s
financial statements through this date.

14
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29 Commerce Drive
Bedford, NH 03110

oy Phone: 603-206-6800
Fax: 603-434-3891
> www.seresc.net

Southeastern Regional Education Service, Inc. RICHA.RD I.,aSALLE
Inspiring innovation and excellence in education and professional practice. Executive Director

SERESC Board of Directors

SAU #12 — Londonderry, 268C Mammoth Road, Londonderry, NH 03053 [N
Mr. Nathan Greenberg, Superintendent
Mr. Stephen Young, School Board Representative

SAU #15 — Candia, Auburn, Hooksett, 90 Farmer Road, Hooksett, NH 03106 | EEEEEEER
Dr. Charles P. Littlefield, Superintendent - Chairperson
Mr. Keith LeClair, School Board Representative — Auburn
Ms. Kim Royer, School Board Representative — Candia
Ms. Kava Salvas, School Board Representative — Hooksett

SAU #25 — Bedford, 103 County Road, Bedford, NH 03110 |G
Mr. Eric McGee, Superintendent
Mr. Don Graff, School Board Representative

SAU #26 — Merrimack, 36 McElwain Street, Merrimack, NH 03054 |
Ms. Marjorie Chiafery, Superintendent, Vice Chairperson
Mr. Andy Schneider, School Board Representative

SAU #28 — Pelham, 59A Marsh Road, Pelham, NH 03076 |
Ms. Amanda Lecaroz, Superintendent
Mr. Brian Carton, School Board Representative

SAU #55 — Timberlane/Hampstead, 30 Greenough Road, Plaistow, NH 03865 [ NENEG
Dr. Earl Metzler, Superintendent
Mr. Michael Mascola, School Board Representative — Timberlane
Mr. Jason Cipriano, School Board Representative — Hampstead

SAU #95 — Windham, 19 Haverhill Road, Windham, NH 03087 [N
Mr. Winfried Feneberg, Superintendent
Dr. Jerome Rekart, School Board Representative




Judith H. Mikami, MA CCC

N

AN
PROFILE

Speech Language Pathologist with 32 years of clinical experience and 30 years experience as an
administrator and supervisor. Specialize in working with children with: special health care needs;
feeding and swallowing disorders; autistic spectrum disorders; motor speech disorders; social-pragmatic
communication disorders; sensory integration dysfunction. Regularly provide conferences, workshops,
training and consultation to parents, personnel in hospitals, early intervention and public school teams,
and community agencies regarding areas of specialties. Teach a semester long graduate course in
Pediatric Dysphagia. Provide on-going supervision and mentoring to professionals serving infants and
children with feeding and swallowing and communication disorders; also graduate students in speech
language pathology. Excel at working as a member of a team to design services which result in high
consumer satisfaction, and to put strategic plans into practice. Dedicated to consumer driven services,
coordinated service delivery, and continual service improvement. Committed to documenting reports
and creating educational materials that are friendly to a diversity of consumers. Have consistently
operated financially healthy programs via accurate budgeting, optimizing third party revenue and
securing grants.

Summary Of Qualifications

CLINICAL

e 32 years experience serving children with feeding and swallowing disorders, from newborn through
young adulthood. Work directly with children’s families, medical teams, Early Supports and
Services, school teams, etc., providing evaluations, intervention and consultation.

e Have conducted and interpreted over 3000 pediatric videofluoroscopic swallow studies.

¢ Extensive experience with evaluating and treating children with: social-pragmatic communication
disorders; complex neurological disorders; autism spectrum disorders; oral sensori-motor disorders;
motor speech disorders; sensory integration disorders; hearing impairment; the sequalae of
prematurity; metabolic and genetic disorders.

¢ Trained in the Newborn Individualized Developmental Care and Assessment Program (NIDCAP)
and Infant Behavioral Assessment Scale

e Trained in American Sign Language and Signed English.

ADMINISTRATION
* Program Manager of a state-wide Feeding and Swallowing Program which is a part of the New

Hampshire Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Network, supported through a grant from Special
Medical Services.

* Developed and managed agency, state, and federal budgets for a hospital affiliated Early
Intervention Program.

* Submitted, secured and implemented private charitable, and state and federal grants.

*  Conducted program development and strategic planning efforts with staff and management.

* Designed, measured, and interpreted quality management tools including continuous service
improvement (CSI) activities, consumer satisfaction surveys, and quality assurance studies.

* Created consumer information materials including brochures, resource booklets, and handbooks

¢ Determined, organized, and maintained program safety and emergency procedures

* Oversaw program's participation in research projects.

*  Addressed any consumer recommendations or concerns.

TEAM LEADERSHIP AND SUPERVISION



Judith H. Mikami, MA CCC

Recruit, interview, and supervise staff.

Insure the completion of a competency-based comprehensive orientation for newly hired consultants
and on-going competency developing.

Extensive experience with supervising and mentoring other professionals in feeding and swallowing
disorders and autistic spectrum disorders.

Supervised a transdisciplinary team of physical, occupational and speech therapists, developmental
pediatricians, social workers, and psychologists.

Currently supervise a team of speech pathologists and occupational therapists trained to provide
feeding and swallowing evaluation, swallow studies and follow-up care.

* Develop and regularly update job descriptions and program handbook.

TRAINING

e Regularly present workshops related to pediatric feeding and swallowing disorders to hospitals,
school system personnel and early intervention providers in New Hampshire and surrounding states.

e Regularly provide trainings to professionals, paraprofessionals, and parents on communication issues
and approaches for children with autistic spectrum disorders.

e Present at two or more conferences per year in areas of specialty.

Work Experience
Spring 2011-present  University of New Hampshire, Dept. of Communication Sciences and Disorders-
Adjunct Professor-teach semester long graduate level course: Pediatric

Dysphagia
Feb. 1995-present Southeastern Regional Educational Service Center, Inc.:
Speech Language Pathologist
June 1986-Feb. 1995  Southern New Hampshire Medical Center Director

Early Intervention Program
Aug. 1985-June 1986  Southern New Hampshire Regional Medical Center  Staff SLP
Early Intervention Program
Oct. 1984-Aug. 1985  Southern New Hampshire Regional Medical Center Staff SLP
Speech and Hearing Department
June 1983-Oct. 1984  Easter Seals/Goodwill Industries of New Hampshire Staff SLP
Education
May 1983  University of Denver Masters of Arts in Speech Language Pathology
with a specialty in Educational Audiology
June 1981  Columbia University Post Graduate Certification in working with deaf
and hearing impaired infants and their parents
Dec. 1980  Northeastern University Bachelor of Arts in Speech Language Pathology

Professional Certifications and Affiliations
* Certificate of Clinical Competence from the American Speech and Hearing Association-
Acct. # 01007137 (since 1984)
¢ Licensed by the State of New Hampshire Board of Speech-Language Pathology; License # 385
¢ Licensed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Division of Professional Licensure Board of
Speech-Language Pathology; License # 9244
¢ Healthcare Provider (CPR and AED) Program-certified through April 2016




M. ALICIA GARCIA
189 Gould Road
Weare, New Hampshire 03281
Home Phone
Email agarcia942@hotmail.com

OBJECTIVE

To obtain a position with a competitive, growth-oriented company where my abilities to initiate action,
organize and effectively communicate will result in excellent quality service.

SUMMARY

A successful professional with over twenty years of experience in the healthcare industry with the ability to
work independently in an energetic, fast-paced environment. Excellent communication and organizational
skills with the ability to completely follow-through on multiple tasks results in an efficiently run
organization and a high level of client satisfaction.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Clinical Services Coordinator, SERESC, Bedford, NH November 201 1-Present
Responsibilities include collecting billing data from 6 providers, ensuring referrals and authorizations are
in place, submitting claims in a timely fashion and pursuing unpaid claims to ensure maximum
reimbursement; tracking and posting all insurance reimbursements and office expenses; establishing in-
office policies and procedures; storing and maintaining patient medical records; credentialing providers
with insurance carriers; inputting encounters to track visit data for the Special Medical Services program.
Excellent work attendance.

Medical Records Clerk, GI Associates, Concord, NH, January 2015-Present
Responsibilities include preloading medical information into Electronic Medical Records; scanning and
properly filing medical records for future recall; scanning and properly routing new referrals received via
fax and electronically; test result correspondence with patients and physicians; patient reminder calls.
Excellent work attendance.

Medical Transcriptionist, Telecommute, Self-Employed, Weare, NH May 2000-December, 2014
Ability to transcribe medical providers’ dictated records efficiently and proficiently with the production of
accurately documented medical records with utmost confidentiality. Sensitive to deadlines. Perform quality
assurance checks. Capability of transcribing digitally and Electronic Medical Records.

Excellent work attendance.

Certified Medical Assistant, Concord Gastroenterology, PA, Concord, NH May 1993-2000
Responsibilities include scheduling appointments, creating and maintaining patient charts and registering
patients; handling insurance referrals and preauthorization for multiple insurance companies; copying and
filing in an efficient manner as well as patient contact including phone triaging and personal patient care in
a service oriented manner; managed patient recalls. Assisted physicians in office procedures.

Excellent work attendance.

EDUCATION
Associate in Business Science, Hesser College, Manchester, NH 1992-1993
President’s List 1992-1993
COMPUTER SKILLS

Proficient in Medisense, Emdeon billing system, Office Ally billing system, Microsoft Word, Microsoft
Works, Microsoft Excel as well as Windows XP and Vista. Type 89 WPM, excellent at 10-key calculator.



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Judith H. Mikami Program Manager $91,000.00 41% $37,295.00

Alicia Garcia Program Assistant $32,881.00 54% $17,785.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

BUREAU OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

120

Nicholas A. Toumpas

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-4488 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4488
Nancy L. Rollins Fax: 603-271-4902 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Associate
Commissioner
May 29, 2013

ﬁ/
/ﬂ Z £n/EX %
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan c/ y, ////_M/J
and the Honorable Council j ' ;5 £cle?

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community-Based Care Services,
Bureau of Developmental Services, Special Medical Service Section, to enter into an agreement not to exceed
$358,228.00 with Southeastern Regional Education Services Center, Inc., 29 Commerce Drive, Bedford, New
Hampshire 03110, to provide feeding and swallowing services to children with special health care needs,
effective July 1, 2013, or date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30,
2015. B

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in State Fiscal Year
2014 and State Fiscal Year 2015 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust the amounts within the price limitation and amend the related terms of
the contract without further approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-93-930010-5191 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES: DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES-DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVSC,
SPECIAL MEDICAL SERVICES

562-500912 CSHCN Assistance $179,114.00 $179,114.00 $358,228.00

EXPLANATION

This request will provide for the services of a Feeding and Swallowing Program Manager who will
recruit, train and supervise a group of community-based therapists (speech, occupational, physical). This request
will also assure the services of these therapists to provide for the assessment of and recommendations for
interventions for feeding and swallowing issues of children with special health care needs. It is estimated that a
total of 450 to 500 children will be served during the two-year contract period.




"Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

and the Honorable Council

May 29, 2013
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Special Medical Services Section offers feeding and swallowing consultation in order to assure that
children with special health care needs will have access to needed services within the State. This service also
lessens the burden on families who would otherwise have to travel out-of-state for comparable care.

Additionally, training and consultation shall be provided to hospital radiology departments in the
provision of swallow studies in pediatric patients, as well as to the Special Medical Services Section’s nurse
coordinators and/or contracted nutritionists, school personnel and early intervention providers on the use of a
screening tool to identify feeding issues.

A Request for Proposals that included performance measures was placed on the Department of Health
and Human Services website between January 16, 2013 and January 25, 2013. The Request for Proposals sought
services statewide. Only one (1) proposal was received.

After a thorough review of the proposals by the evaluation committee, the Southeastern Regional
Education Service Center, Inc. was selected to provide the service. A Bid Summary showing a comparison of the
Southeastern Regional Education Service Center, Inc. proposal to all other proposals in this category is attached.

.. The Division-of Community-Based Care Services-has been contracting- with-the-Southeastern-Regional— — -
Education Service Center, Inc. for eight years for provision feeding and swallowing services for children with
special health care needs. The Division is pleased with the performance of the Southeastern Regwnal Education
Service Center, Inc. under previous agreements.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to authorize this- request between 450-500
children with special health care needs would not have access expert assessments and individualized plans for
intervention of feeding and swallowing issues.

This agreement contains a provision to extend this award for up to two additional years contingent upon
satisfactory service, sufficient funding, and the approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Area served: Statewide.
Source of funds: 30% Federal from Title V Block Grant and 70% General funds.

In the event that Federal funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

cy L. ollms

ssocnate Comm1ssnoner

Approved by:
ic olasA Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing oppartunities for citizens ta achieve health and independence.
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SCORING SUMMARY SHEET

REQUEST FOR APPLICATIONS
FEEDING AND SWALLOWING SERVICES FOR CHILDREN WITH SPECIAL HEALTH CARE
NEEDS

Applicant: *Southeastern Regional Education Service Center, Inc.
Statewide Services

Total Available Average Score
1. Agency Capacity (40 points) 39
2. Program Structure/Plan of Operation (45 points) 41
3. Budget and Justification (10 points) _8
4. Format | -~ (S5poimtsy 5
TOTAL (100 points) - 93

Reviewers:

Dlane McCann, RN, MS, PNP, Retired State Employee (Previously had been Clinical Coordinator
for Special Medical Services.)

Diana Dorsey, MD, Pediatric Consultant, Special Medical Services Section

Alicia M. L Esperance, BS/BA, Program Manager, Partners in Health Program.

* This was the only proposal received, for Feeding and Swallowing Services for Children with
Special Health Care Needs.




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Feeding and Swallowing Services for Children with Special Health Care Needs
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2  State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Special Medical Services Section Concord, NH

Bureau of Developmental Services
Division of Community Based Care Services

03301-3857

1.3  Contractor Name

Southeast Regional Education Service Center

1.4  Contractor Address
29 Commerce Drive
Bedford, NH 03110

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number
Number
603-206-6800 05-95-93-930010-5191-562-

500912

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2015 $358,228.00

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nancy L. Rollins, Associate Commissioner

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-8181

1.11 Contragthr Sig r

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Richard LaSalle, Executive Director

1.13  Atkn$«ledgement: State of WCoumy of Fh”g h)/mﬂh

on glf2013

, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or

satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the

capacity indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

(Seal]

ABBY COLLINS, Notary Public
My Commission Expires Septamber 23, 2014

Name and Title of Nofary or Justice of the Peace

Mok, Ot

1.13.2

1.14  State Agency Signature

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Nancy L. Rollins, Associate Commissioner

1.16  Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By:

Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

2l 72V RN
By: Jthrnne P. etk At errre,

on: 4_J1,(_r\ 2613

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (*Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those lignidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement tothe
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the

- regulations of the United States Department of Eabor (41—

C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.’

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws. :

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State,
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Centractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to .

the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data™ shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this

Jvy Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,

files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductians, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished. '

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractoy without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement. '

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers® Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
—~|arise underapplicable State of New Hampshire-Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement,

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the

.. provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor. '

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,

" waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference. :

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior

Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

DATE: Commencing upon date of Governor and Council approval or July 1, 2013,
whichever is later, through June 30, 2015.

CONTRACT PERIOD: July1,2013 to

CONTRACTOR:
NAME: Southeast Regional Education Service Center, Inc.
ADDRESS: 29 Commerce Drive
03110
TELEPHONE: 603-206-6800
FAX: 603-206-6599
EMAIL: richard@seresc.net
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:  _Richard LaSalle

June 30, 2015

The Feeding and Swallowing Services (FSS) Program will focus on providing community-based services
to children with special health care needs, birth through 21 years of age, and their families. The FSS will
include, at a minimum, a staff of Regional Feeding and Swallowing Specialists for the State of New
Hampshire, a Program Manager and a Third-Party Administrator for Feeding and Swallowing Services.
The same individual may hold more than one of the roles designated herein, or one role may be held by a
single individual to meet the needs of the program and plan of work.

I. - General Provisions

A. The Contractor is responsible for providing home- and community-based feeding and
swallowing assessments, intervention and ongoing monitoring of the growth and health status
of children accepted for services by the FSS and the Special Medical Services Section (SMS).

B. The Contractor must assure that Regional Feeding and Swallowing Specialists that comprise
the FSS are available for consultation and technical assistance to all SMS community-based

coordinators and clinic coordinators.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Standard Exhibit A — Scope of Services
January 2009
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The Contractor shall coordinate and collaborate whenever possible with other service
providers within the community. At a minimum, such collaboration will include the
Comprehensive Nutrition Network for Children with Special Health Care Needs (SMS
contract). Efforts shall include collaborative training, joint planning for shared clients,
interagency referrals and coordination of care.

The Contractor must provide reports on a quarterly and annual basis regarding program
census, activities, QA activities and accomplishments through the repotting mechanism and
in the timeframe established by the Special Medical Services Section’s administrative staff.
The Contractor must assure that data is inputted in a timely manner in the SMS Master File
system. Additional information may be requested by SMS at any time during the contract
period. :

The Contractor should be available to develop or provide alternative means of service
provision should there be an unmet needs identified for a specific population of Children with
Special Health Care Needs.

Program activities include attendance at meetings and activities as assigned by the
Administrator of the Special Medical Services Section.

The Contractor will coordinate a system integrating public and private funding to sustain the
availability of specialized nutrition services to children with special health care needs
throughout the State. '

» Develop and maintain relationships with third-party insurance payers and public health
funders.

= Develop a system to negotiate and secure reimbursements for nutrition services, and
serve as the paymaster for the established network of community-based providers’ fee for
service and training activities.

» Establish and maintain the capacity to procure reimbursements via electronic billing
systems.

In addition, the Special Medical Services Section retains the right to reorganize services to
ensure continuity of service delivery.

II. Staffing Provisions

A,

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials;
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The Contractor must follow the staffing gnidelines summarized below:

1. SMS should be notified in writing within one (1) month of hire of when a new Regional
Feeding and Swallowing Specialist is hired to work in the program. A resume of the
employee shall accompany this notification.

2. In the event of a vacancy in any of the staff positions, the Contractor shall recruit for the
position(s). The Special Medical Services Section shall maintain final approval in the
selection process.

Date:
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3. Resumes of all staff shall be submitted to SMS with the agency’s application for funding.

4. The Contractor shall make a request in writing to the Special Medical Services Section
before hiring new program personnel that do not meet the required staff qualifications. A
waiver may be granted based on the need of the program, the individual’s experience
and/or additional training.

5. Al health professionals shall have the appropriate New Hampshire licensure.

6. Feeding and Swallowing Specialists shall have a Bachelor’s degree in a health-related
field, or a Master’s degree in speech and language therapy or occupational therapy.

= He/She shall have knowledge and understanding of anatomy and physiology of the
normal swallowing reflex, and how this automatic activity may be impaired or
diminished in children with disabilities.

= Knowledge of normal growth and development.

* Knowledge of federal/state legislation regarding service provision to children with

- disabilities.

Knowledge of the education/consultative processes.

Ability to organize work, analyze problems and recommend/implement solutions.
Ability to establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with medical,
educational and allied health service providers.

7. Community-Based Feeding and Swallowing Specialists shall obtain, maintain and
provide documentation of comprehensive professional liability insurance.

8. Community-Based Feeding and Swallowing Specialists must be willing and able to travel
statewide.

1l Required activities of Regional Feeding and Swallowing Specialists shall include, but not be

limited to, the following:

A.

Communicate regularly with SMS nurse coordinators, physicians and dieticians, and other
SMS personnel regarding child-specific feeding and swallowing concerns, case coordination
issues, outcomes of feeding and swallowing evaluations, service planning, and continuons
quality improvement and initiatives.

Utilize a standardized feeding and swallowing screening process to identify children with
significant pathology, or at risk for such health problems.

Utilize a standardized format for documenting oral motor plans for oral and non-oral feeders.

Implement, monitor effectiveness and modify or revise feeding and swallowing interventions
for atypical infants, toddlers and children with special health care needs.

E. Include parents and community providers in the evaluation process and the plan of care.,
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:
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Participate in hospital-based radiology programs to provide video fluoroscopic swallow
studies (VFSS) for at-risk children.

Provide instruction regarding feeding interventions to meet the individual medical, physical
and psychosocial needs of children with special health care needs and their families.

Participate/Attend quarterly training activities with staff of the Comprehensive Nutrition
Network (SMS contract).

Complete, in a timely manner, comprehensive written reports, which detail the child’s
feeding and swallowing status and intervention/recommendations. Reports shall be available
to families and health professionals designated by the family.

Complete monthly reporting forms (provided by SMS) and attend quarterly in-service
trainings provided by the Contractor.

Required activities of the Program Manager shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

A.

G.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor initialg:
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Supervise the activities of all professional and support personnel associated with the FSS
Program.

u Provide ongoing competency development for all providers.
» Recruit new providers as necessary.

Assure that Regional Feeding and Swallowing Specialists associated with the FSS Program
and professionals associated with the SMS contracted Comprehensive Nutrition Network
attend quarterly in-service training activities.

Organize and implement said training sessions for community-based providers in
collaboration with the Comprehensive Nutrition Network.

Assign the clinical caseload to community-based feeding and swalloWing specialists.

Monitor feeding and swallowing service delivery via frequent review of reports, and contact
with key consumers including parents, care coordinators, dieticians, physicians, early
intervention teams, school teams, etc.

Collaborate with the Comprehensive Nutrition Network’s Program Coordinator and Clinical
Manager, and SMS’ Developmental Pediatricians in planning for the continual improvement
of nutrition, feeding and swallowing services.

Contribute to program evaluation activities to: measure consumer satisfaction; investigate
outcomes of service delivery; quality of monthly trainings; new program offerings (e.g.,
workshops, support groups, etc.); participate in other ongoing quality assurance activities.

Provide ongoing training and technical assistance to hospital radiology departments to
provide child- and family-friendly video fluoroscopic swallow studies (VFSS).

Date:
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» Based on demand, assist community providers and hospitals to conduct 6-10 VFSS per
month.
= Assist participating hospitals to document VFSS data.

H. Provide competency training in pediatric feeding and swallowing disorders to community-
based personnel serving children ages preschool through high school.

I. Collaborate with community groups to offer workshops, informational parent support groups,
etc., to parents and other interested individuals on specific topics pertaining to feeding and
swallowing disorders.

J. Create and provide regional parent trainings on specific feeding and swallowing topics in
collaboration with FSS staff and SMS’ contracted Comprehensive Nutrition Network
Program, when appropriate.

K. Provide ongoing information, support and resources to primary care providers and medical
homes regarding children with feeding and swallowing disorders.

‘L. —Prepare-informational materials/handouts for families  and primary care-providers regardmg-—— ~——
aspects of feeding and swallowing issues not adequately available commercially.

M. Submit monthly activity logs and expenditure reports to the SMS contracting officer.
N. Prepare a year-end summary of activities and products.

V. Required activities of the Third-Party Administrator of Feeding and Swallowing Services shall
include, but not be limited to, the following:

A. Develop and coordinate a system integrating public and private funding to sustain the
availability of specialized nutrition services to children with special health care needs
throughout the State. '

B. Develop and maintain relationships with third-party insurance payers and public heaith
funders. :

C. Develop a system to negotiate and secure reimbursements for feeding and swallowing
services, and serve as the paymaster for the established network of community-based
providers’ fee-for-service and training activities.

D. Establish and maintain the capacity to procure reimbursements via electronic billing systems.

E. Oversee the activities of a Biller and FSS Program staff whose scope of work includes
reviewing and managing computer input of service encounter data and provider transactions.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: 2 é
Standard Exhibit A — Scope of Services -~
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT B

METHODS AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

The Contract Price shall not exceed $358,228.00 . Payments shall be made during SFY 2014 and SFY
2015 in accordance with the Budget attachment. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the
Contractor agrees that funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of
non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if
the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this agreement.

Reimbursements for services provided shall be made by the State on a monthly basis after receipt, review
and approval of monthly expenditure reports submitted by the Contractor to the State. These reports,
which are based on a budget approved by the State, shall be in a form satisfactory to the State and shall
be submitted no fater than twenty (20) working days after the close of the month. In addition to the
monthly expenditure reports required and not later than sixty (60) days after the end of the budget period,
the Contractor shall submit a final expenditure report in a form satisfactory to the State.

The Contractor agrees to use and apply all payments made by the State for direct and indirect costs and
expenses including, but not limited to, personnel costs and operating expenses related to the Services.
Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in accordance with applicable State and
Federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees not to use or apply such payments for capital
additions or improvements, dues to societies and organizations, entertainment costs or any other costs
not approved by the State. The Contractor must also have written authorization from the State prior to
purchasing any equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred dollars ($500) and/or with a useful life
beyond one (1) year.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent futﬁré legislative action by the NH General Court may impact on
the services described herein, the State retains the right to modify expenditure requirements under this
agreement.

The Contractor and/or the State may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases
or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the Contract Price. Such
amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval by the State with
programmatic justification.

In the event of a vacancy in any of the key personne! positions, the Special Medical Services Section is
authorized to direct any and all budget revisions deermed necessary and appropriate by the Administrator
to assure continuity of services as outlined in Exhibit A, including the cost of advertisement.

The Contractor shall be paid only for the total number of hours actually worked at the identified hourly rate
as des:gnated in the Budget. The total of all payments made to the Contractor for costs and expenses
incurred 'in the performance of the Services during the period of the contract shall not exceed three
hundred fifty-eight thousand, two hundred twenty-eight doliars ($358,228.00). As directed by the State,
funds may be adjusted, if needed and justified, between State fiscal years based upon actual incurred

expenses.
Contractor Initials: K
Dalc:_wz_‘
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT C
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuais and,
in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

4. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands. that all_applicants_ for.services hereunder, as well as individuals

declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby. covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be pemmitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratulties or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a
payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behaif of the Contractor, any Sub-Coritractor or the State in order to
influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract.  The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is determined that payments, gratuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or
Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual appiies for services or (except
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such
services.

8. Conditions of Purchase; Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor's costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party funders for such service, If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment in excess
of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders, the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;

8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of
costs;

NH DHHS Contractor Initials;
Standard Exhibit C — Special Provisions
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8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the
Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and
other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with
accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and
which are acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materiais,
inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or
required by the Department. '

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility (including alf
forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
Contractor fiscal year. it is recommended that the repart be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations” and
the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions, wsued by
the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
audit, examination, excerpts and transcnpts.

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

11. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shali not be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purposes directly connected to the administration of the services and the
Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for
any purpose not directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities
with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his attorney
or guardian.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following times
if requested by the Department.

NH DHHS Contractor Initials:; ﬁ_
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12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all

v costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such other

information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such

Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the
Department.

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal and other information required by the
Department.

13. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and
all the obligations of the parties hereunder {except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses
claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the
amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

14. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared during or
resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New

——————Hampshire-and/or suchrother funding sources as were available or Tequired, &.g-, the United States Department

of Health and Human Services.

15. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership:
All materials (written, video, audio) produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS
before printing, production, distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, or
reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without prior written approval
from DHHS.

16. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for
providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shail impose an
order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any govemmental license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with
the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with ali
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

17. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with greater
expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience, but the Contractor shall
retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate
the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated function(s). This is accomplished'through a written agreement
that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation
or imposing sanctions if the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same
contractual conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is. responsuble to ensure subcontractor compliance with
those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
» Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating the function

» Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting responsibilities and

how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's performance is not adequate ’

NH DHHS
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» Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

» Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be revrewed

+ DHHS shall review and approve ail subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall take corrective
action.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable and
reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting pnncnples established in accordance with state and federai
laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required by
the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the Contractor
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue

for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period of
time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies.i etc. are referred
to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be
amended or revised from the time to time.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this Contract
will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Standard Exhibit C — Special Provisions -~
January 2013 Date:
Page 4 of 4
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT C-I

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 7.2 of the General Provisions of this agreement is hereby amended to read:

*7.2. The Contractor shall not hire, and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to perform the services, to hire any person
who has a contractual relationship with the State, or who is a State employee or official, elected or
appointed, without prior written consent of the State. The Contracting Officer specified in Block 1.9 or
hismer successor shall determine whether a conflict of interest exists.”

2, Subparagraph 9.3. of the General Provisions of this agreement is deleted and the following
paragraph added:

‘9.3. The State, and anyone it shall designate, and the Contractor shall have authority to publish,
disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in pant, all data, provided such data, when
published, disclosed, distributed or otherwise used, shall not disclose any personal identifiers or
confidential information as to any individual or organization without the prior written consent of such
individual or organization.”

3. Paragraph 14. of the General Provisions of this agreement is hereby amended to read:

“14.1. The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain in force, for the benefit of the
State, the following insurance:

14.1.1. Comprehensive general liability insurance in amounts not less than $1,000,000
each occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate.

14.2. The policies described in subparagraph 14.1. of this paragraph shall be the standard form
employed in the State of New Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation
or modification. of the policy earlier than ten (10) days after written notice thereof has been received
by the State.”

4. The following paragraphs shalt be added to the General Provisions of this agreement:

“22.1. Records and Accounts Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the
Completion Date, the Contractor shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection
with the Services including, but not limited to, costs of administration, transportation, insurance,
telephone calls and clerical materials and services. Such accounts shall be supported by receipts,
invoices, bills and other similar documents.”

_/_Cf{ |
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*22.2. Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion Date, at any
time during the Contractor's normal business hours and as often as the State shall demand, the
Contractor shall make available to the State ail records pertaining to matters covered by this
agreement. The Contractor shall permit the State to audit, examine and reproduce such records and
to make audits of all invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that term is
hereinafter defined) and other information relating to all matters covered by this agreement. As used
in this paragraph, *Contractor” includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlied by or
under common ownership with, the entity identified as the Contractor in Block 1.3 of these General
Provisions.”

"22.3. Inspection of Work Performed: The State or an authorized representative shall, at all
reasonable times, have the right to enter into Contractor's premises, or such other places where
duties under the contract are being performed, to inspect, monitor or otherwise evaluate the work
being perfoormed. The Contractor and all subcontractors must provide access to all reasonable
facilities and assistance for State representatives. All inspections and evaluations shali be performed
in sushi manner as will not unduly delay work.”

22.4. Under the provisions of the Contract, personnel benefits for the Key Personnel shall be
consistent with and in accordance to any adopted personnel policies of the contractor specified in
Block 1.3. Health insurance benefits shall be designated by the Contract Budget.”

“22.5. Third-Party Reimbursement and other sources of health services funding. The Contractor in
Block 1.3 shall recover, to the maximum extent feasible, third-party revenues to which it is entitled for
health services provided. Beneficiaries will not have any charges levied against them. Procedures
outlined by Contractor in Block 1.3 shall identify all persons served who are eligible for third-party
reimbursement, and shall be implemented at all contract sites. All income generated through third-
party reimbursement shall be retained by the Contractor for the activities identified in Standard
Exhibit A: Scope of Services. Records of the earnings and disposition of income must be maintained
in the same manner as outlined in paragraph 22.1."

6. Foliowing the approval by the Governor and Executive Cauncil, this contract shall commence on or
about July 1, 2013 and terminate on June 30, 2015, with an option for renewal by way of a 2-year
extension (July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2017) subject to availability of funding and prionties, satisfactory
performance of the Scope of Services by the Contractor, mutual agreement by the parties and
approval of contract renewals by the Governor and Executive Council.

7. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this
Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any
subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal
legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or
availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of
Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in
excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination
or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account
into the Account identified in block 1.6, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or

unavailable.
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor initials; Z
Standard Exhibit C1- Additional Special Provisions
January 2009 Date:
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitie D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections $151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989

-regulations_were amended and._published as Part I of the May 25,1990 Eederal Register (pages 21681~ ..

21691), and require certification by grantees (gnd by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered. by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

‘ Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pieasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1 The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;,

3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:

Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements
January 2009 Date;
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Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federa! agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under

subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and inciuding
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as

amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency,

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation

of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in

connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

29 Commerce Drive, Bedford, NH 03110

Check [ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Southeast Regional Education Service Center

From: 7/1/2013 To: 6/30/2015

{Contractor Name) (Period Covered by this Certification)

Richard LaSalle, Executive Director

(Name & Title of Authorizeg,Contractor Representative)

$76/13

(ContradtorREéprisentitive Signature)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements
January 2009
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NH Department of Health and Human Services |
STANDARD EXHIBIT E
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
“Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
“Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Titie VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: 7/1/13 through 6/30/15

The undersigned cettifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) —No-Federal-appropriated-funds-have-been-paid or will-be-paid by or-on behalf cf*tht.rundétsignedﬁd any

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal apptopriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

(3) The undersigned shall reguire that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shali certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject
to a civil pe of nojdess than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Richard LaSalle, Executive Director

{Contréictot Rebresentative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Southeast Regional Education Service Center S"’/é // 3
{Contractor Name) (Date) r7

Standard Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying ~
January 2009 Date: .

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations ) Contractor Initials: é;_e_
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is
providing the certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily resuit
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human
Services’ (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of
the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify
such person from participation in this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary
particlpant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions
and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.
See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily exciuded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by
DHHS.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: éié

Standard Exhibit F ~

Certification Regarding Debamment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters 91% 2:.3
Date:

January 2009
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7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
maodification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
involuntarly excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required o, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may

terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and
its principals:

(@) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for- debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen

property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and

(d) 'have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
(contract).

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials. K
Standard Exhibit F — .
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its
principals: '

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal
department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposai (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it
will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. .

Richard LaSalle, Executive Director

(Con'tta%r Represeﬁ'tative Signature) {Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Southeast Regional Education Services Center @ /6 /7 3
(Contractor Name) (Date) / !

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor lnilialsﬁ
Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters . )
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: ’

1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

~ 7 "~ Richard Lasalle, Exéciitive Director
(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Southeast Regional Education Services Center, Inc. {5;/ 4/// 3

(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor initials: A é
Standard Exhibit G — Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act
January 2009 Date: g%[[ i
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STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’'s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Richard LaSalle, Executive Director
(Contmcb( Reﬁreser'ﬁative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Southeast Regional Education Service Center S/; 6/ / 3

(Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initi K

Standard Exhibit H ~ Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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STANDARD EXHIBIT !
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT
{0 Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.

13400. . U

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record sét” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR.
Section 164.501.

f. *“Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations™ in 45
CFR Section 164.501. ‘ :

g “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information,; 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

i. “Individual™ shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States

Department of Health and Human Services. Z
Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor initials

September 2009
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“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law™ in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

. “Secretary " shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her

designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information,

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
I1. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
1L For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the
HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it bas obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the

PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.
Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: /f/\/
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If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
forth in, the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the

———Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determinifig

Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as
provided under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered -a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s
intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance
with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an

.amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the

Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR

Section 164.526.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initialg:
September 2009
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Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting
of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI-has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so

‘long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires

that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Qbligations of Coygred Entity

Covered ‘Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR
Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Standard Exhibit | —~ HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials:
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-Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure

- the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines

that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the

Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the

“charnges in the requirements of HIPAA; the Privacy aiid Security Rule, and applicable federal and

state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

September 2009
Page 5 of 6 Date:

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: é
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Division of Community-Based Care Services
Bureau of Dev. Services, Special Medical Services

Southeastern Regional Education
Service Center, Inc.

The State Agency Name

Name of the Contractor

Signature of AuthoHzed Representative

Nancy L. Rollins

)"

Signature of Authorized Representative

Richard LaSalle

Name of Authorized Representative

Associate Commissioner

Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

I/ 714(7 20 /3

Date

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

September 2009
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Date

Contractor Initials:L

Date: 377/6‘/ / j




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1

l, ‘ IN\O'H’\(,\ W\awes ., do hereby certify that:
(Name of Clerk’of Corporatron)

1. | am duly elected Clerk of Soo‘}’heag'ke_n Qﬁoum’w& 6(\(_)('&‘47(,\/\
(the “Corporation”). Service Cender N Fre. (sErESC)

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the
Bpard of Directors of the Corporation duly held on
Aug uel 20, 2012

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of New
Hampshire, acting through its Department of Health and Human
Services, Division of Public Health Services, for the provision of

Educathmad

services.

.
RESOLVED: That the Eyxecuhyve Direchw
(President) (Vice-President) (Treasurer)
hereby is authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enter into the said
contract with the State and to execute any and all documents, agreements
and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions or modifications
thereto, as she/he may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and
remain in full foce and effect as of MNrxer | . 2013
(Date of Notarrzatlon ?elow is date to be used abov '

- 4. ﬁ:{ l"\mf Execwhve Vivedhys r are) the duly
(Presrdent) (Vice-President) (Treasurer) '
elected of the Corporatlon

(Seal). | ' ‘ %%L K /)Wm

. (Signature @ Clerk of the Eprporation)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF _&/-//. /_r £ g ,{

The foregoing statement was acknowledged before me this 7[}374 day of

A//H .:g-r/jby
e

. /flj (Nafy’
(Seal) :

(TITLE: Notary Public/Justice of Peace)

My commission expires:
MARY L. CODY, Notary Public
My Commission Exprres February 2, 2016




